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Vision 
PuRPose 
VAlues

Everything we do at Southern Cross Credit Union is aimed at providing 
our customers with an exceptional banking experience. Our vision, 
purpose and values have helped shape our strategy and will influence 
our future business decisions. 

At Southern Cross Credit Union we share a vision to be the first choice 
for easy to understand banking. As a customer owned institution, every 
day we strive to help our customers, our people and our community 
realise their dreams.

CustomeR FoCused

CARe

emPoweRment

integRity

Community
we get to know our customers by making 

their banking experience personal.

we care for each other, our community and 
our environment.

we empower our customers to take control 
of their banking.

we are professional, reliable and serious about 
the financial well-being of our customers.

we connect and engage with 
our community.

Our values are a reflection of what is important to our team, our customers and our community. 

“ ”
First choice for easy to 
understand banking
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Vision Purpose Values
Everything we do at Southern Cross Credit Union is aimed at 
providing our customers with an exceptional banking experience. Our 
vision, purpose and values have helped shape our strategy and will 
influence our future business decisions. 

At Southern Cross Credit Union we share a vision to be the first 
choice for easy to understand banking. As a customer owned 
institution, every day we strive to help our customers, our people and 
our community realise their dreams.

Our values are a reflection of what is important to our team, our 
customers and our community. 

Customer Focused - We get to know our customers by making 
their banking experience personal.

Community - We connect and engage with our community.

Care - We care for each other, our community and our environment.

integrity - We are professional, reliable and serious about the 
financial well-being of our customers.

empowerment - We empower our customers to take control of
their banking.

we Remain 100% Committed to our Customers 
Competition continues to increase as consumers have access to 
more banking and finance options than ever before. We need to 
continually invest in our people, technology and infrastructure to 
ensure we remain relevant in this ever changing environment, meet 
the expectations and demands of our existing customers and, at the 
same time, continue to attract new customers.

By taking this approach we will maintain our position as a financially 
sound organisation which will allow us to continually grow and 
reinvest to provide our valued customers with competitive banking 
solutions, products and services. 

We have delivered a number of new products and process 
enhancements during the 2014-2015 financial year, aimed at 
improving the banking experience of our customers.

•	 Platinum	Home	Loan	Package

•	 Online	term	deposits

•	 Website	enhancements

•	 Improved	interest	rates	on	our	Home,	Personal	and	Business	Loans.	

our Customers and our Community are the Heart 
and soul of our organisation 
We want you, our valued customers, to experience exceptional 
service, to find it easy to do business with us and, as our owners, be 
our advocates. By working together we can better support you and 
our community in achieving your financial aspirations and dreams. 

Building advocacy among our customers and our community is 
crucial to our success. To help us achieve this we have introduced a 
referral program that provides reciprocal benefits to SCCU, as well as 
local businesses and community.

Through our Community Partnership program we have provided 
financial, in kind and voluntary support to a number of events and 
groups throughout the Northern Rivers. 

tweed Palliative support and give for Care
Tweed Palliative Support provides a community run respite and 
hospice for individuals and families facing life limiting illness. In 2014, 
we joined forces to create the Give for Care campaign to raise the 
funds needed to employ round the clock nurses at Tweed Palliative 
Support’s Wedgetail Retreat. The campaign was successful in raising 
awareness and funds. Full time nursing staff commenced at Wedgetail 
Retreat in February. Northern NSW is incredibly lucky to be home to 
this unique, important and fully community funded organisation. 

Ballina Fine wine & Food Festival
A volunteer committee made up of members from the Rotary Club 
of Ballina on Richmond have been organising and hosting the Ballina 
Fine Wine & Food Festival for over six years. We are proud to have 
supported this event in 2014 and 2015. The Fine Wine & Food 
Festival is one of the premier events on the Ballina social calendar and 
is 100% run by volunteers. Proceeds are donated to a local charity 
each year and in 2014 the major recipient was Seabird Rescue.

“we want you, our 
valued customers, to 
experience exceptional 
service, to find it easy 
to do business with us 
and, as our owners, be 
our advocates”
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our strategic Focus for the next three years
Since our last strategic plan was implemented, the pace of change 
in the financial services industry has been unprecedented. Increased 
competition and regulation, advances in technology and changes in 
consumer preferences and behaviours have cumulated to create many 
challenges for the industry and potential opportunities for SCCU.

To ensure we are in a position to meet these challenges and take full 
advantage of opportunities as they arise, the board has approved a 
new strategic plan covering the following three year period.

The strategic plan was developed following a full review of SCCU’s 
business and operations, with careful consideration given to changes 
in the external environment and feedback from both employees 
and customers.  

Such a challenging environment requires an ambitious plan. Our 
three year strategic plan is designed to ensure:

1.      We attract the next generation of customers by invigorating and 
refreshing SCCU’s brand and image 

2.   Our products and services remain relevant and are delivered in a 
way that meets/exceeds the expectations of 
our customers 

3.   Our employees are engaged and have the skills to support our 
vision and the local community 

4.     The prudential, financial and legal management of the business 
remains appropriate and sound

5.   Our continued growth and prosperity in an ever 
changing industry

6.   We invest in our technology to enhance our digital, online and 
branch offering

Since the implementation of our strategic plan in early 2015, we 
have already seen strong indications that we are on the right track 
with increased financial performance and improvements in business 
efficiencies, customer experience and employee engagement. 

our new executive leadership team
To enable delivery of our strategic plan, we have completed an 
organisational restructure. We now have the right capability and 
resources in critical areas to allow us to deliver on our promises to remain 
competitive, adapt to the changing pace of the banking landscape and 
make SCCU the first choice for easy to understand banking.

It is a pleasure to introduce our new Executive team. 

our Financial Performance at a glance
Southern Cross Credit Union has achieved record levels of prudent 
lending growth in the second half of the 2014-2015 financial year. 
This is a positive sign in a period that has proven to be tough for 
many financial institutions. 

Our loan book has grown from $285,664,000 to $301,672,000 
which has in turn resulted in our total assets growing by $8,534,000 
in the last 6 months. These are the strongest results SCCU has seen 
in quite some time and confirms we are taking the right approach 
with our future direction. The positive growth in our balance sheet 
in tough economic conditions and a further strengthening of capital 
levels, loans and deposits, has placed SCCU in a strong position to 
continue to grow and prosper over the coming financial year. 

•	 		Capital,	the	basis	of	our	financial	strength	grew	by	4.46%	to	
$43,560,000;

•	 		Profit	after	tax	was	$2,032,000,	a	decrease	of	23%	($619,000).	This	
decrease is attributable to a decrease in non-interest income and 
exposure to an external fraud. An insurance claim for the external 
fraud has been lodged, as disclosed in the financial statements;

•	 		Liquidity	averaged	22.39%	of	liabilities,	above	regulatory	
minimums and within the Credit Unions policy limits;

•	 		Loans	in	arrears	(a	measure	of	credit	quality)	was	0.42%	of 
total loans, reflecting our responsible lending practices and 
excellent work from our team in assisting customers facing 
financial difficulties;

•	 Total	Assets	increased	to	$376,400,000;

•	 Member	Deposits	surpassed	$327,027,000;	and

•	 Shareholding	members	at	June	2015	totalled	18,621.

Brett Myles - Executive Manager Finance & IT, 
Joan	Meehan	-	Executive	Manager	Human	Resources, 
Stuart Edwards - Chief Executive Officer, 
Craig Barker - Executive Manager Risk & Compliance, 
Simon Lehmann - Executive Manager Sales & Distribution

SCCU supported the 2014 Ballina Fine Wine and Food Festival, featuring Paul and 
Blair from My Kitchen Rules and raising money for Australian Seabird Rescue.
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our Financial Highlights at a glance
Profit	before	Tax	 $2,890,000	 	
Total Reserves $43,560,000 Up 4.46%
Total Loans $301,672,000 Up 5.60%
Total	Deposits	 $327,027,000	 Up	6.95%
Total	Assets	 $376,400,000	 Up	6.49%

our outlook at a glance
Global and local economic volatility continues with the ASX 200 
down	500	points	since	July	1	2015.	Consumer	uncertainty	impacts	
borrowing behaviour and our customers are saving at the highest 
rate since WWII.  

The current low interest environment is expected to continue into the 
foreseeable future. As a customer owned institution, this requires 
careful management to balance the requirements of borrowers 
seeking lower interest rates, against the needs of depositors seeking 
higher returns on their investments. The Board and Management 
are constantly monitoring and reviewing our policies products and 
interest rates to ensure SCCU is operating efficiently and providing 
the best outcome for our customers.

The low interest rate environment has fuelled competition amongst 
lenders,	and	thus	SCCU’s	interest	margin	(the	difference	between	
what	is	paid	to	depositors	and	what	we	earn	from	borrowers)	
continues to face downward pressure. In addition, cost pressures such 
as CPI driven increases in costs continue to have an impact, while 
investment in branches and customer technology needs to continue.

As a result of these pressures the Credit Union, although delivering 
another healthy result for the year, expects profit growth for the 
coming	financial	year	to	be	relatively	subdued.	However,	the	Board	
and Management remain confident our strategic plan will provide 
us with the strength and stability to continue to deliver and improve 
upon the quality financial solutions and exceptional service you have 
come to expect from us. 

Appreciation
On behalf of the Board and the Executive Management team, 
we would like to thank our valued customers for your loyalty and 
overwhelming support. Our customers are our owners and we remain 
100% committed to getting to know you, helping you understand 
every part of your banking experience, and empowering you to use 
that knowledge to achieve your financial dreams and aspirations. 

Thank you to our team for their unwavering commitment to SCCU 
and for the inspiring work they do every day to provide an exceptional 
experience for our customers. 

To our Board and Executive Management team, your strategic advice 
and support has been immeasurable and has played a big part in the 
results we have achieved to date.

Without you all we would not be the success we are today. Thank you. 

Stuart Edwards
Ceo

John	Rutledge
Chairperson
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 Loans in arrears (a measure of credit quality) was 
0.42% of total loans, reflecting our responsible 
lending practices and excellent work from our 
team in assisting customers facing financial 
difficulties;

 Total Assets increased to $376M; 

 Member Deposits surpassed $327M; and 

 Shareholding members at June 2015 totalled 
18,621.

Our Financial Highlights at a Glance

Profit before Tax  $2.89M   

Total Reserves  $43.56M Up 4.46% 

Total Loans   $301.67M Up 5.60% 

Total Deposits  $327.03M Up 6.95% 

Total Assets   $376.40M Up 6.49% 

Our Outlook at a Glance
Global and local economic volatility continues with 
the ASX 200 down 500 points since July 1 2015.  
Consumer uncertainty impacts borrowing behaviour 
and our customers are saving at the highest rate 
since WWII.   

The current low interest environment is expected to 
continue into the foreseeable future.  As a customer 
owned institution, this requires careful management 
to balance the requirements of borrowers seeking 
lower interest rates, against the needs of depositors 
seeking higher returns on their investments. The 
Board and Management are constantly monitoring 
and reviewing our policies products and interest rates 
to ensure SCCU is operating efficiently and providing 
the best outcome for our customers. 

The low interest rate environment has fuelled 
competition amongst lenders, and thus SCCU’s 
interest margin (the difference between what is paid 
to depositors and what we earn from borrowers) 
continues to face downward pressure. In addition, 
cost pressures such as CPI driven increases in costs 
continue to have an impact, while investment in 
branches and customer technology needs to 
continue.

As a result of these pressures the Credit Union, 
although delivering another healthy result for the 
year, expects profit growth for the coming financial 
year to be relatively subdued. However, the Board 
and Management remain confident our strategic plan 
will provide us with the strength and stability to 
continue to deliver and improve upon the quality 
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diReCtoRs’ RePoRt to memBeRs

Your	Directors	submit	their	report	for	the	financial	year	ended	30	June	2015.

directors
The names of Directors in office at the date of this report and their qualifications, experience and special responsibilities are as follows:

nAme QuAliFiCAtions eXPeRienCe ResPonsiBilities

John Rutledge JP,	AAMI Board Member since Chairperson

Diploma in Financial Services 27	July	2004

Phillip Hoffman Director Development Course Board Member since Deputy Chairperson

AAMI 27 November 2001 Member - Audit Committee

Diploma in Financial Services Member - Risk Committee

Colin lee OAM,	JP,	AAMI Board Member since Director

Diploma in Financial Services 28	January	1997

Pauline Ross Diploma in Nursing Admin Board Member since Chairperson of Risk Committee

Bachelor	of	Health	Admin 30 August 2005 Member - Audit Committee

Masters in Public Policy, AAMI

guy Bezrouchko Bachelor of Business Board Member since Chairperson of Audit Committee

Certified Practising Accountant 20	June	2006 Member - Risk Committee

AAMI

Diploma in Financial Services

Belinda Henry Bachelor of Laws Board Member since Member - Audit Committee

Practical Legal Training Course 30	June	2011 Member - Risk Committee

Legal Practice Management Course

Each Director holds one ordinary member share in the Credit Union. 

Southern	Cross	Credit	Union	Directors	Guy	Bezrouchko,	Pauline	Ross,	John	Rutledge,	Phillip	Hoffman,	Colin	Lee,	Belinda	Henry
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diReCtoRs’ RePoRt to memBeRs

diReCtoRs’ meetings
The	number	of	meetings	of	Directors	(including	committee	meetings)	
held, where each Director was available during the year, and the 
number of meetings attended by each Director were as follows:

director meetings

no. of meetings Held Attended

Phillip	Hoffman 13 12

Colin Lee 13 13

John	Rutledge 13 13

Pauline Ross 13 12

Guy Bezrouchko 13 13

Belinda	Henry	 13 12

Audit Committee 
meetings*

Risk Committee 
meetings *

no. of meetings Held Attended Held Attended

Phillip	Hoffman 5 5 5 5

Pauline Ross 5 5 5 5

Guy Bezrouchko 5 5 5 5

Belinda	Henry	 5 5 5 5

 *   From November 2014, the Audit and Risk Committee was seperated into two 
separate committees in accordance with the newly issued Prudential Standard, CPS 
220 Risk Management.

Leave of absence was granted where Directors were unable to attend 
board meetings.

The name of the Company Secretary in office at the end of the year is:

nAme QuAliFiCAtions eXPeRienCe

Brett Myles Bachelor of Commerce, 
JCU	Chartered	
Accountant, Institute of 
Chartered Accountants 
of Australia 
Member of the 
Australian Institute of 
Company Directors

   26 years’ experience 
encompasing roles in a 
Big “4” accounting firm, 
Senior Executive Roles 
at Financial Insitutions 
and Management 
Consulting Firms.

directors’ Benefits
No Director of the Credit Union has received or has become entitled to 
receive a benefit because of a contract made by the Credit Union with 
the Director or with a firm of which the Director is a member or with 
an entity in which the Director has a substantial financial interest.

indemnity insurance
The Credit Union has, during the financial year, paid an insurance 
premium in respect of an insurance policy for the benefit of Directors, 
Secretaries, Executive Officers and employees of the Credit Union 
and of related bodies corporate as defined in the insurance policy.

The insurance policy grants indemnity against liabilities permitted to 
be indemnified by the Corporations Act 2001. The insurance policy 
prohibits disclosure of the nature of the liabilities insured and the 
premium specified.

FinAnCiAl PeRFoRmAnCe disClosuRes
Principal Activities
The Credit Union operates as a community based Credit Union 
providing financial services to members in the form of deposit taking, 
the provision of financial accommodation and other member services 
as prescribed by the constitution. There were no significant changes 
in the nature of those activities during the financial year.

operating Results
The	net	profit	after	income	tax	was	$2,032,000	($2,651,000	in	
2014),	representing	a	decrease	of	$619,000.

The results for the year were affected by:

•	 		an	increase	in	Net	Interest	Income	of	$360,000	due	to	the	growth	
in the loan portfolio, particularly in the last 6 months of the year, 
offset by a significant reduction in investments rates largely due to 
competitive market pressures;

•	 		a	decrease	in	Non	Interest	Income	of	$178,000	due	to	reduction	
in ATM Direct charge commission income as consumers increase 
usage of lower cost EFTPOS channels, and a reduction in Member 
fee income as Member’s increase usage of lower cost transaction 
methods such as internet and mobile banking;

•	 		an	increase	in	Employee	and	Associated	Expenses	of	$68,000	
due to redundancy payments;

•	 		an	increase	in	Loans	Administration	expenses	of	$50,000	due	
to the good growth achieved in the loans balance and the direct 
associated costs;

•	 		an	increase	in	Occupancy	Expenses	of	$126,000	largely	due	
to the makeover of the Mullumbimby branch, legal costs and 
maintenance costs;

•	 		a	decrease	in	Marketing	and	Promotion	costs	of	$134,000	due	to	
the extensive advertising, rebranding and the production of new 
Television Commercials implemented the previous financial year; 
and

•	 		unfortunately,	the	Credit	Union	was	a	victim	of	an	external	fraud	
that cost $520,000.

Review of operations
The nature of the Credit Union’s operations from its activities 
of providing financial services to its members did not change 
significantly from those of the previous year.
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diVidends
In accordance with the constitution of the Credit Union, dividends are 
not paid to members.

significant Changes in state of Affairs
Apart from the review of operations as detailed above, there were 
no significant changes in the state of the affairs of the Credit Union 
during the year.

events occurring After Balance date
No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the 
financial year which significantly affected or may significantly affect 
the operations, or state of affairs of the Credit Union in subsequent 
financial years.

environmental regulations
All activities have been undertaken in compliance with environmental 
regulations that apply to credit unions. 

likely developments and Results
No other matter, circumstance or likely development in the operations 
has arisen since the end of the financial year that has significantly 
affected or may significantly affect:

i)	 The	operations	of	the	Credit	Union;

ii)	 The	results	of	those	operations;	or

iii)	The	state	of	affairs	of	the	Credit	Union.

CoRPoRAte goVeRnAnCe disClosuRes
Board
The Credit Union Board has responsibility for the overall management 
and strategic direction of the Credit Union. All Board members are 
independent of management. Directors are elected by members on a 
3-year rotation. 

Each Director must be eligible to act under the constitution as a 
member of the Credit Union and Corporations Act 2001 criteria. The 
Directors also need to satisfy the Fit and Proper criteria set down by 
APRA.

The Board has established policies to govern conduct of the Board 
meetings, Directors conflicts of interest and training so as to maintain 
Director awareness of emerging issues and to satisfy all governance 
requirements.

Board Remuneration
The Board receives remuneration from the Credit Union in the form 
of allowances agreed to each year at the AGM and out of pocket 
expenses. There are no other benefits received by the Directors from 
the Credit Union.

Board Committees
An Audit Committee exists to assist the Board by providing an 
objective non-executive review of the effectiveness of the SCCU’s 
financial reporting and audit function.

A Risk Committee exists to assist the Board by providing an objective 
non-executive review of the effectiveness of the SCCU’s risk 
management framework.

The Directors form the majority of these committees with executive 
management participation.

The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting and audit 
process. Its responsibilities include:

•	 Financial	Reporting

•	 External	Audit	

•	 Internal	Audit	and	Internal	Control	

•	 Compliance

•	 Regulatory,	Compliance	and	Ethical	Matters	

The Risk Committee oversees the risk management and compliance 
framework and associated process. Its responsibilities include:

•	 Risk	Management

•	 Risk	Measurement	and	Risk	Tolerance	levels

•	 Risk	Appetite

•	 Insurance	Program

Policies
The Board has endorsed a policy of compliance and risk 
management to suit the risk profile of the Credit Union. 

Key risk management policies include:

•	 Risk	Management	Framework

•	 Capital	Adequacy	Management

•	 Liquidity	Management

•	 Credit	Risk	Management

•	 Data	Risk	Management

•	 Operational	Risk	Management

•	 Outsourcing	Risk	Management

Chief Risk officer
The Credit Union has a Chief Risk Officer who is the Executive 
accountable for enabling the efficient and effective governance of 
significant risks, and related opportunities, to a business and its 
various segments. The CRO reports to the Board Risk Committee 
for enabling the business to balance risk and reward. The CRO 
is responsible for coordinating the organisation’s Enterprise Risk 
Management	(ERM)	approach.

9
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external Audit
The annual audit of the Credit Union’s financial report and 
compliance with prudential standards is performed by Thomas Noble 
& Russell, a Lismore based firm. The firm of Thomas Noble & Russell 
has been auditing Credit Unions for over 20 years. The firm utilises 
sophisticated Computer Assisted Audit Software to supplement the 
compliance testing.

internal Audit
An internal audit function exists using the services of an internal 
audit person within management to deal with the areas of internal 
control, compliance and regulatory compliance only.

The internal audit function reports directly to the Board Audit 
Committee, making recommendations to the committee for 
improvements to the Credit Unions operations and internal controls.

This role is also supplemented by other external compliance reviews 
performed, including security audits on the data processing systems/
centres for adequacy of the back up, disaster recovery and internet 
security systems.

Regulation
The Credit Union is regulated by:

•	 		Australian	Prudential	Regulation	Authority	(APRA)	for	the	prudential	
risk management of the Credit Union; and

•	 		Australian	Securities	and	Investment	Commission	(ASIC)	for	
adherence to the Corporations Act, Accounting Standards 
disclosures in the financial report and Financial Services Reform 
(FSR)	requirements.	

The auditors report to both authorities on an annual basis regarding 
compliance with respective requirements. The external auditors also 
report to ASIC on FSR compliance and APRA on prudential policy 
compliance.

Auditors’ independence
The auditor has provided the following declaration of independence 
to the Board as prescribed by the Corporations Act 2001.

occupational Health & safety
The nature of the finance industry is such that the risks of injury 
to staff and the public are less apparent than in other high-risk 
industries. Nevertheless, our two most valuable assets are our staff 
and our members and steps need to be taken to maintain their 
security and safety when circumstances warrant.

OH&S	policies	that	comply	with	the	Work	Health	and	Safety	
Act legislation have been established for the protection of both 
members and staff and are reviewed six monthly for relevance and 
effectiveness.

Staff are trained in robbery procedures and offices are designed to 
detract from such acts by:

•	 Little	or	no	cash	being	held	in	accessible	areas;

•	 		Cameras	and	counter	screens	in	all	offices	to	allow	detection	and	
identification of unauthorised persons.

The	Credit	Union	has	established	an	OH&S	committee	of	employees	
that meets regularly to consider any concerns for security or safety 
raised by employees or the public. All matters of concern are 
reported to the Acting CEO for actioning by management. Secure 
cash handling policies are in place and lifting heavy weights are 
managed by proper techniques to minimise the risk of damage.

Regulatory disclosures
Regulatory Prudential disclosures required by APS 330 Public 
Disclosure issued by APRA can be located on the Credit Union’s web 
site at the following address:   www.sccu.com.au

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

John Rutledge 
Chairperson

dated this 29th day of september 2015

Phillip Hoffman
deputy Chairperson

10
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diReCtoRs’ deClARAtion

1. In the opinion of the Directors of the Credit Union: 

	 (a)	 The	attached	financial	statements	and	notes	set	out	on	pages	11	to	48	are	in	accordance	with	the	Corporations	Act	2001,	including:

	 	 	 i)	 complying	with	Accounting	Standards	and	the	Corporations	Regulations	2001;	and

	 	 	 ii)	 		giving	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	Credit	Union’s	financial	position	as	at	30	June	2015	and	of	its	performance	for	the	year	ended	
on that date; and

	 (b)	 There	are	reasonable	grounds	to	believe	that	the	Credit	Union	will	be	able	to	pay	its	debts	as	and	when	they	become	due	and	payable.

2. The notes to the financial statements include a statement of compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards.

 This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors and is signed for and on behalf of the Directors by:

John Rutledge 
Chairperson

dated this 29th day of september 2015

Phillip Hoffman
deputy Chairperson

AuditoR’s indePendenCe deClARAtion
As	lead	auditor	for	the	audit	of	the	financial	report	of	Southern	Cross	Credit	Union	Limited	for	the	year	ended	30	June	2015,	I	declare	that,	to	the	
best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:

(a)		 the	auditor	independence	requirements	as	set	out	in	the	Corporations	Act	2001	in	relation	to	the	audit;		and

(b)		 any	applicable	code	of	professional	conduct	in	relation	to	the	audit.

Dated	at	Lismore	this	29th	day	of	September	2015.

tHomAs noBle & Russell
CHARteRed ACCountAnts

A	J	BRADFIELD	 (Partner)
Registered Company Auditor



Note 2015 2014
$'000 $'000

Interest Income 2 18,034 18,605
Interest Expense 3 (7,907) (8,837)
Net Interest Income 10,127 9,768

Non-interest income 2 2,887 3,065

Impairment expense 11 (39) (58)
Employee benefits expense 3 (4,226) (4,158)
Occupancy expense 3 (983) (857)
Depreciation and amortisation expenses 3 (347) (333)
Other expenses 3 (4,530) (3,698)
Profit before income tax 2,890 3,729

Income tax expense 4 (858) (1,078)

Profit for the year 2,032 2,651

Other Comprehensive Income, net of income tax

Net changes in the fair value of Land and Buildings (34) -               
Net changes in the fair value of cash flow hedges  (1) (211) (50)
Income tax on items of other comprehensive income  (1) 74 15
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (171) (35)
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year 1,861 2,616

1,861 2,616

(1)    Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss

The above Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Total Comprehensive Income attributable to Members of the Credit Union

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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Note 2015 2014
$'000 $'000

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 7 9,265 10,986
Receivables from other financial institutions 8 61,333 53,503
Other receivables 9 548 410
Loans and advances to members 10&11 301,672 285,664
Available for sale investments 12 577 577
Other assets 16 131 112
Property, plant and equipment 13 1,539 1,456
Current tax assets 20 506 -               
Deferred tax assets 14 636 543
Intangible assets 15 193 205

TOTAL ASSETS 376,400 353,456

LIABILITIES
Borrowings -               -               
Deposits from members 17 327,027 305,782
Payables and other liabilities 18 5,126 4,789
Derivatives 19 261 50
Current tax liability 20 -               251
Deferred tax liability 20 -               -               
Provisions 21 424 885

TOTAL LIABILITIES 332,838 311,757

NET ASSETS 43,560 41,699

MEMBERS EQUITY
Redeemed preference share capital 22 349 324
Other reserves 23 2,443 2,574
Retained earnings 40,768 38,801

TOTAL MEMBERS EQUITY 43,560 41,699

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2015

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes
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Asset 
Revaluation 

Surplus

Capital 
Profits

Redeemed 
Preference 

Share 
Capital

Hedging 
Reserve

General 
Reserve 
for Credit 
Losses

Retained 
Earnings

Total 
Members 

Equity

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Balance at 1 July 2013 537 229 309 -            1,862 36,147 39,084
Profit for the year -                 -         -                  -            -               2,650 2,650
Net gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges, net of tax -                 -         -                  (35) -               -             (35)

-                 -         -                  (35) -               2,650 2,615
Transfers to Redeemed Preference Share Capital -                 -         15 -            (15) -             
Transfers from General Reserve for Credit Losses (19) 19 -             
Balance at 30 June 2014 537 229 324 (35) 1,843 38,801 41,699

Profit for the year -                 -         -                  -            -               2,032 2,032
Other comprehensive income
Net gain/(loss) on asset revaluation, net of tax (23) -             (23)
Net gain/(loss) on cash flow hedges, net of tax -                 -         -                  (148) -               -             (148)

(23) -         -                  (148) -               2,032 1,861
Transfers to Redeemed Preference Share Capital 25 (25) -             
Transfers from General Reserve for Credit Losses -                 -         -            40 (40) -             

Balance at 30 June 2015 514 229 349 (183) 1,883 40,768 43,560

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Total comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year
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Note 2015 2014
$'000 $'000

i) Cash flows from operating activities

Interest received 18,034 18,605
Dividends received 82 106
Other non interest income received 2,811 2,822
Interest paid (8,031) (9,378)
Payments to suppliers and employees (10,273) (8,184)

2,623 3,971

Movements in operating assets and liabilities
Net movement in member loans (16,047) (4,824)
Net movement in member deposits 21,681 19,158

5,634 14,334

Income taxes paid (1,707) (906)
Net cash provided by operating activities 37(c) 6,549 17,399

ii) Cash flows from investing activities

(7,831) (16,884)
Payments for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (441) (395)
Proceeds from sale of property plant & equipment and intangible assets 1 -                

Net cash used in investing activities (8,271) (17,279)

iii) Cash flows from financing activities

Net movement in other borrowings -                -                

Net cash used in financing activities -                -                

(1,722) 120

10,986 10,866

37(a) 9,265 10,986

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

Net movement in receivables due from other financial institutions

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalent assets held
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NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Income Tax

(b) Revenue

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

The financial report is presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($’000) unless
otherwise stated under the option available to the Credit Union under ASIC Class Order 98/0100. The Credit Union is an entity
to which the class order applies.

Loan fees are brought to account as income in the year of receipt up to the amount of costs recouped. Loan fees in excess of
costs are brought to account as income over the period of the loan.

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, including
Australian Accounting Interpretations, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board
(AASB) and the Corporations Act 2001.

Loan interest is not brought to account when the Credit Union is informed that the member is deceased or generally if a loan has
been transferred to a debt collection agency or a judgement has been obtained. No interest is charged on loans where
repayments are in arrears and the prospect of a contribution from the member is minimal. However, accrued interest may be
recovered as part of the recovery of the debt.

Loan interest is calculated on the daily loan balance outstanding and is charged in arrears to the members’ loan accounts on the
last day of each month. For loans where interest is charged in advance, the income is recognised as it accrues on a monthly
basis.

Investment interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into account the interest rates applicable to the
financial assets.

Fees and commissions are recognised upon the rendering of the service to the customer.

The financial report covers Southern Cross Credit Union Limited as a single for-profit entity which is a public company limited by
shares, incorporated and domiciled in Australia. The nature of the credit union's operations and principal activities are disclosed
in the directors' report.  The financial report was authorised for issue on 29 September 2015 by the directors of the Credit Union.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result in financial statements
containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. Compliance with Australian Accounting
Standards ensures that the financial statements comply with International Financial Reporting Standards.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the Credit Union in the preparation of the financial
report. Except where stated, the accounting policies have been consistently applied.

Basis of Preparation

This financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis except for the statement of cash flows, and is based on historical
costs modified by the revaluation of land and buildings, and certain other financial assets and financial liabilities (including
derivative instruments) for which the fair value basis of accounting has been applied.

The income tax expense (income) for the year comprises current income tax expense (income) and deferred tax expense
(income).
Current income tax expense charged to the profit or loss is the tax payable on taxable income calculated using applicable
income tax rates enacted, or substantially enacted, as at reporting date. Current tax liabilities (assets) are therefore measured at
the amounts expected to be paid to (recovered from) the relevant taxation authority.

Deferred income tax expense reflects movements in deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability balances during the year as well
as unused tax losses.

Current and deferred income tax expense (income) is charged or credited directly to equity instead of the profit or loss when the
tax relates to items that are credited or charged directly to equity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are ascertained based on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets also result where amounts have been fully expensed but future tax deductions are available. No deferred
income tax will be recognised from the initial recognition of an asset or liability where there is no effect on accounting or taxable
profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates enacted, or substantively enacted, at reporting date. Their measurement
also reflects the manner in which management expects to recover or settle the carrying amount of the related asset or liability.

Deferred tax assets relating to temporary differences and unused tax losses are recognised only to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the benefits of the deferred tax asset can be utilised.
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SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Con't)

(c)

(d)

Specific Provision for Impairment

General Reserve for Credit Losses

Components of Impaired Assets

(e)

"Non-accrual loans" are loans and advances:

Loans to members

Loans and advances to members are recognised as recoverable amounts, after assessing required provisions for impairment.
Impairment of a loan is recognised when there is reasonable doubt that not all the principal and interest can be collected in
accordance with the terms of the loan contract.

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined
above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash at bank and in hand. Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank overdrafts are
shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Bad debts are written off when identified. If a provision for impairment has been recognised in relation to a loan, write offs for
bad debts are made against the provision. If no provision for impairment has been previously recognised, write offs for bad
debts are recognised in profit or loss.

The various components of impaired assets are as follows:

The amount provided for impairment of loans is determined by management and the Board. The Prudential Standards issued by
APRA require a minimum provision to be based on specific percentages of the loan balance, contingent upon the length of time
the repayments are in arrears, and the security held. In addition, the Board makes a provision for loans in arrears where the
collectability of the debts are considered doubtful by estimation of expected losses.

In addition to the above specific provision, a general reserve for credit losses is maintained to cover risks inherent in the loan
portfolios. Movements in the general reserve for credit losses are recognised as an appropriation of retained earnings.

Receivables

"Past-due loans" means a loan or similar facility in arrears which has not been operated within its key terms by the borrower for
at least 30 days and which is not an impaired loan and includes category one loans in accordance with Prudential Standards
APS 220 that are in arrears for at least 30 days and are well secured.

and includes category two loans, category three loans and category four loans, in accordance with harmonised Prudential
Standards Guidance Note AGN 220.1.
"Restructured loans" are loans and other similar facilities where the original contractual terms have been modified to provide for
concessions of interest, principal or repayment for reasons related to financial difficulties of the member or group of members.

(i)  for which there is reasonable doubt that the Credit Union will be able to collect all amounts of principal
      and interest in accordance with the terms of the contract; or

(ii)  which do not meet the definition of a restructured loan only because it yields less than the Credit Union’s
       average cost of funds;

"Assets acquired through the enforcement of security" are assets acquired in full or partial settlement of a loan or similar facility
through the enforcement of security arrangements.

Receivables from other financial institutions are primarily negotiable certificates of deposit or term deposits with other financial
institutions which have a carrying amount equal to their principal amount. Interest is paid on the daily balance at maturity and is
brought to account in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income when earned. All deposits are in
Australian currency. 
Other Receivables

Receivables Due from other Financial Institutions

Other receivables are accrued income for Commissions and Transaction Fees from Members and other sundry clearing
accounts.
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SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Con't)

(f)

Recognition

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss

Loans and receivables

Held-to-maturity investments

Available-for-sale financial assets

Financial liabilities

(g)

Property

Plant and Equipment
Plant and equipment are measured on the cost basis less depreciation and impairment losses.

Depreciation

Financial instruments are initially measured at cost on trade date, which includes transactions costs, when the related
contractual rights or obligations exist. Subsequent to initial recognition these instruments are measured as set out below.

The decrement in the carrying amount is recognised as an expense in the net profit or loss from ordinary activities in the
reporting period in which the recoverable amount write-down occurs. The expected net cash flows have not been discounted to
their present values in determining recoverable amounts.

The depreciable amount of all property, plant and equipment including buildings and capitalised leased assets but excluding
freehold land, is depreciated over their useful lives commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold
improvements are depreciated over the estimated useful life of the improvements.

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or if so designated
by management and within the requirements of AASB139: Recognition and Measurement of Financial Instruments. Derivatives
are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising
from changes in the fair value of these assets are included in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
in the period in which they arise.

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net
amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

Freehold land & buildings are measured on the fair value basis, being the amount for which an asset could be exchanged
between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm’s length transaction. It is the policy of the Credit Union to have an independent
valuation every three years, with annual appraisals being made by the Directors.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment is reviewed annually by the Directors to ensure it is not in excess of the
recoverable amount of these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of expected net cash flows, which will be
received from the assets employment and subsequent disposal.

The revaluation of freehold land and buildings has taken account of the potential capital gains tax on assets acquired after the
introduction of capital gains tax.

Each class of property, plant & equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market and are stated at amortised costs using the effective interest rate method.

Held to maturity investments are non-derivative financial assets that have fixed or determinable payments, and it is the Credit
Unions intention to hold these investments to maturity. Any held-to-maturity investments held by the Credit Union are stated at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Property, plant and equipment

The Credit Union assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. Objective evidence included observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in estimated future cash flows.

Financial Instruments

Non-derivative financial liabilities are recognised at amortised cost, comprising original debt less principal payments and
amortisation.

Available-for-sale financial assets include any non-derivative financial assets that are either designated as such or that are not
included in the above categories. Available-for-sale financial assets are reflected at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses
arising from changes in fair value are taken directly to equity.
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SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Con't)

Property, plant and equipment is depreciated on a straight line basis in accordance with the following rates:

Buildings 2.5% Motor Vehicles 20%
Furniture & Equipment 15% Plant & Equipment 20%
Computer Equipment 25% Leasehold improvements 10%
Assets under $300 are not capitalised.

(h)

(i)

(j)

(k)

(l)

(m)

(n)

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments available.

Provision is made for the liability for employee benefits arising from services rendered by employees to reporting date.
Employee benefits expected to be settled within one year, have been measured at their nominal amount. Other employee
benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be

d

Comparative Figures
Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with the changes in the presentation of the current year.

Members’ deposits

Borrowings

All employees of the Credit Union are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. The Credit Union contributes to
various defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees.

Derivative instruments are measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are taken to the
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income unless they are designated as hedges.

Contributions are made by the Credit Union to employee superannuation funds and are charged as expenses when incurred.

The Credit Union uses derivative financial instruments to hedge its exposure to interest rate risks arising from operational
activities.

Derivative Instruments

Present values are discounted using rates on high quality corporate bonds having terms to maturity that match, as closely as
possible, the terms of the related liabilities. Future increases in remuneration rates are taken into account in estimating future
cash outflows.

i) hedges of the fair value of recognised assets or liabilities or a firm commitment (fair value hedge); or
ii) hedges of highly probable forecast transactions (cash flow hedges).

The credit union designates certain derivatives as either:

Leases

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the lessor, are charged as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

Computer software held as intangible assets are amortised over the expected useful life of the software. These lives range from
3 to 8 years resulting in a straight line depreciation base of 33.3% to 12.50% respectively.

The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Intangible assets

Employee Benefits

Borrowings are measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method. Borrowing costs are recognised in the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive
Income in the period in which they are incurred.

Members’ deposits are brought to account at the gross value of the outstanding balance. Interest on deposits are brought to
account on an accruals basis.
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SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Con't)

(n)

(o)

(p)

(ii) Value at Risk (VaR)

Credit Risk – Loans

Details of the interest rate risk profile are set out in Note 29.

(i) Hedging
To mitigate interest rate risk the Credit Union has entered into interest rate swaps. The Credit Union hedges its exposure to
interest rate risk on fixed rate loans/assets by entering into pay fixed/receive floating interest rate swaps.

Based on the Value at Risk (VaR) calculations as at 30 June 2015, the VaR is $69,998 or 0.16% of capital (30 June 2014
$169,300 and 0.42% of capital).

Amounts accumulated in the hedge reserve in equity are transferred to the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income in the periods when the hedged item will affect profit or loss.

(ii) Cash flow hedge
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges is deferred
to a hedge reserve in equity. The gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income.

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from
investing and financing activities which are recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO are classified as operating cash flows.
Risk Management Objectives and Policies

Market Risk and Hedging Policy
Market risk is the potential adverse change in the Credit Union's income or the value of its net assets arising from the movement
in interest rates or other market prices. 

Managing Interest Rate Risk

As a financial institution the Credit Union is input taxed on all income except other income from commissions and some fees.
An input taxed supply is not subject to GST collection, and similarly the GST paid on purchase cannot be recovered on a
proportionate basis. In addition certain prescribed purchases are subject to Reduced Input Tax Credits, of which 75% of the
GST paid is recoverable.

At the inception of the transaction the relationship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as the credit union's
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions is documented.
Assessments, both at hedge inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions have been and will continue to be highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged items,
are also documented.
(i) Fair value hedge
Changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges are recorded in the Statement of
Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, together with any changes in the fair value of hedged assets or liabilities that
are attributable to the hedged risk.

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the ATO. In these circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of an item of the expense. Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included where applicable GST is
collected. The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO is included as a current asset or current liability in
the Statement of Financial Position.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss as a result of a default by counterparties to satisfy contractual obligations. The Credit
Union's credit risk largely arises from its lending activities and off-balance sheet financial instruments such as loan
commitments.

The Credit Union manages its interest rate risk using the following methods:

The Credit Union is exposed to interest rate risk arising from changes in market interest rates due to the mismatches between
the repricing dates of assets and liabilities. The Board monitors these risks through monthly reporting and a review of the risk
management profile is conducted by internal audit.

The Credit Union is not exposed to currency risk and other price risk. The Credit Union does not trade in the financial
instruments it holds on its books.

Derivative Instruments (Con't)

The Credit Union has undertaken the following strategies to minimise the risks arising from financial instruments:

The policy of the Credit Union is to maintain a balanced ‘on book’ hedging strategy by ensuring the net interest rate gaps
between assets and liabilities are not excessive. This is measured and monitored using the Value at Risk methodology (VaR).
The Credit Union's policy limit in respect of VaR is to keep this measurement below 3% of capital. The VaR is measured
monthly to identify any large exposures to interest rate movements and to rectify the excess through targeted fixed rate interest
products available through investment assets and term deposits liabilities to rectify the imbalance to within acceptable levels.
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SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Con't)

(p)

Concentration Risk

Credit Risk – Liquid Investments

2015 2014
Actual Rating $'000 $'000
(S&P Rating) Balance Balance
A-1+/AA- 450 450
A-1/A- 3,011 6,018
A-2/BBB- 51,852 41,004
A-3/BB- -               -                         
B- -               -                         
Others / Unrated 6,020 6,030
TOTAL 61,333 53,502

Credit Risk – Equity Investments

Liquidity Risk

Concentration exposures to counterparties are closely monitored with annual reviews being prepared for all exposures over 5
per cent of the capital base. 

The credit union’s policy on exposures of this size is to insist on an initial Loan to Valuation Ratio (LVR) of no more than 80 per
cent and bi-annual reviews of compliance with this policy are conducted. 

Credit risk in relation to liquid investments is the risk that the other party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge their
obligation resulting in the credit union incurring a financial loss. This usually occurs when debtors fail to settle their obligations
owing to the credit union.

Concentration risk is a measurement of the credit union’s exposure to an individual counterparty (or group of related parties). If
prudential limits are exceeded as a proportion of the credit union’s regulatory capital (10 per cent) a large exposure is
considered to exist. No capital is required to be held against these but APRA must be informed. APRA may impose additional
capital requirements if it considers the aggregate exposure to all loans over the 10% capital benchmark, to be higher than
acceptable. 

The Credit Union manages its exposure to credit risk by adhering to its lending policies which require assessment of the quality
of security offered and the capacity of the member to repay the loan in accordance with the terms and conditions of the loan.

The credit union uses the ratings of reputable rating agencies to assess the credit quality of all investment exposures, where
applicable, using the credit quality assessment scale in APRA Prudential Practice Guide APG 112. The credit quality
assessment scale within this standard has been complied with.

External credit assessment for institutional investments

The Credit Union has a concentration in retail lending for members who comprise employees and family in the public healthcare
industry. This concentration is considered acceptable on the basis that the Credit Union was formed, in part, to service these
members and the employment concentration is not exclusive. Should members leave the industry the loans continue and other
employment opportunities are available to the members to facilitate the repayment of the loans. The details of the geographical
and industry concentrations are set out in Note 31.

All investments in equity instruments are solely for the benefit of service to the Credit Union. The Credit Union invests in an
entity, being CUSCAL, set up for the provision of services such as IT solutions, treasury services etc where specialisation
demands quality staff which is best secured by one aggregated entity. Further details of these investments are set out in Note
12.

Risk Management Objectives and Policies (Con't)

The Liquidity Management policy is that investments are only made to Authorised Deposit Taking Institutions (ADIs). The Board
has established policies that a maximum of 40% of its capital can be invested in any one ADI at a time, with the exclusion of
CUSCAL Limited.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the credit union may encounter difficulties raising funds to meet commitments associated with
financial instruments e.g. borrowing repayments or member withdrawal demands. It is the policy of the Board of Directors that
treasury maintains adequate cash reserves and committed credit facilities so as to meet the member withdrawal demands when
requested.

The risk of losses from the liquid investments undertaken is reduced by the limits to concentration on one entity. Also the
relative size of the credit union compared to the industry is relatively low such that the risk of loss is reduced.
Under the Credit Union liquidity support scheme at least 3.2% of the total assets must be invested in an approved ADI to allow
the scheme to have adequate resources to meet its obligations. In addition, the Credit Union is required to maintain deposits
with CUSCAL to the value of not less than 120% of all Committed Overdraft Facility Limits approved with CUSCAL. 

The risk of losses from loans to members is primarily reduced by the nature and quality of the security taken. The Board Policy
is to maintain at least 65% of the loans in well secured residential mortgages which carry an 80% Loan to Valuation ratio or less.

The exposure values associated with each credit quality step for the credit union are as follows:
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SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Con't)

(p)

- Continuously monitoring actual and daily cash flows and longer term forecasted cash flows;
- Monitoring the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities;
- Maintaining adequate cash reserves, liquidity support facilities and reserve borrowing facilities; and
- Monitoring the prudential liquidity ratio daily.

Liquid funds to total adjusted liabilities: 2015 2014
 - As at 30 June 19.25% 19.81%
 - Average for the year 22.39% 18.66%
 - Minimum during the year 19.24% 16.14%
Liquid funds to total member deposits:
 - As at 30 June 21.59% 21.09%

Operational Risk

Capital Management

The Credit Union is required to hold a minimum level of capital compared to calculated risk weighted assets, as prescribed by
APRA regulations. Credit Union internal policies at reporting date require 13% capital to be held which is a ratio that is higher
than the minimum required by APRA. To manage the Credit Unions capital the Credit Union reviews the ratio monthly and
monitors major movements in asset levels.

- Retained profits; and

- A general reserve for credit losses that records amounts previously set aside as a general provision for impaired loans is
maintained to comply with the Prudential Standards as set down by APRA.

(ii) Tier 2 Capital

The Credit Union maintains a risk register that identifies all material risks the Credit Union is exposed to. This register rates risks
on their likelihood and consequence and risks above the Board's desired risk appetite are actioned by strengthening controls
designed to reduce these risks.

Controls in place to reduce Operational Risks include business continuity plans, including comprehensive information
technology disaster recover plans to limit the impact of major business disruptions, adequate insurance cover, sound human
resource policies, policies and systems designed to reduce errors and segregation of employee duties, including approval and
processing duties.

The main Operational Risks the Credit Union is exposed to include internal fraud, external fraud, employment practices and
workplace safety risks, business continuity, compliance risks, business disruption and information technology failure, employee
errors and outsourced supplier failure.

The Credit Union is required to maintain at least 9% of total adjusted liabilities as liquid assets capable of being converted to
cash within two business days under APRA Prudential standards. The Credit Union Policy is to apply 12% of funds as liquid
assets to maintain adequate funds for meeting member withdrawal requests. This ratio is checked daily. Should the liquidity
ratio fall below this level, management and the Board are to address the matter and ensure that the liquid funds are obtained
from new deposits or borrowing facilities available. Note 25 details the borrowing facilities available to the Credit Union as at
balance date.

The Credit Union maintained liquidity levels in excess of APRA prudential requirements at all times during the year.

Operational Risk is the risk of loss to the Credit Union resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and
systems or from external events.

The ratio of liquid funds over the past year is set out below:

Risk Management Objectives and Policies (Con't)

The Credit Union maintained capital in excess of the Board and APRA prudential requirements at all times during the year.

Tier 2 capital generally comprises:

Capital resources

Capital and other regulatory disclosures as required by Prudential Standard APS 330: Public Disclosure can be located at the
Credit Union's website: www.sccu.com.au

The credit union has a long standing arrangement with the industry liquidity support scheme, Credit Union Financial Support
Services (CUFSS) which can access industry funds to provide support to the credit union should this be necessary at short
notice.  Additional disclosure is provided at Note 26.

The maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities based on the contractual repayment terms is set out in Note 

The vast majority of Tier 1 capital comprises:

- Realised reserves

(i) Tier 1 Capital

The credit union manages liquidity risk by:
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SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Con't)

(q) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

(r) Fair Values

(s) Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. It is based on the presumption that the transaction takes place either in the
principal market for the asset or liability or, in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market. The principal
or most advantageous market must be accessible to, or by, the Credit Union.

Fair value is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming
that market participants act in their best economic interest.

The fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account the market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset at its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset at its
highest and best use.
In measuring fair value, the Credit Union uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of observable inputs and minimise
the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value are classified, into three levels, using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. Classifications are reviewed each reporting date and transfers
between levels are determined based on a reassessment of the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

For recurring and non-recurring fair value measurements, external valuers may be used when internal expertise is either not
available or when the valuation is deemed to be significant. External valuers are selected based on market knowledge and
reputation. Where there is a significant change in fair value of an asset or liability from one period to another, an analysis is
undertaken, which includes a verification of the major inputs applied in the latest valuation and a comparison, where applicable,
with external sources of data.

The fair value of liabilities may be valued, where there is no observable market price in relation to the transfer of such financial
instrument, by reference to observable market information where such instruments are held as assets. Where this information is
not available, other valuation techniques are adopted and, where significant, are detailed into the respective note to the financial
statements. 

AASB 13 - Fair Value Measurement aims to improve consistency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definition of fair
value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across Australian Accounting
Standards. The standard does not extend the use of fair value accounting but provides guidance on how it should be applied
where its use is already required or permitted by other Australian Accounting Standards. 

Previously the fair value of financial liabilities (including derivatives) was measure on the basis that the financial liability would be
settled or extinguished with the counterparty. The adoption of AASB 13 has clarified that fair value is an exit price notion, and as
such, the fair value of financial liabilities should be determined based on a transfer value to a third party participant. There is no
material impact on the Credit Union arising from AASB 13 however additional disclosure is included in Note 34.

Significant Accounting Estimates

Deferred tax assets have been recognised on the Statement of Financial Position as management considers that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be derived to utilise these assets.

Management's estimation of the useful lives of property, plant and equipment is based on historical experience, manufacturers
information and valuers estimates. Details of depreciation rates and useful lives is provided at Note 1(g).

Estimation of the useful lives of assets

The directors evaluate estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial report based on historical knowledge and best
available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current trends and
economic data, obtained both externally and within the Credit Union. 

Recovery of deferred tax assets

Fair values may be used for financial and non-financial asset and liability measurement as well as sundry disclosures.

Impairment of loans
Management have made accounting estimates when applying the Credit Union's accounting policies with respect to the specific
impairment provisions for loans - refer Note 11.
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SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 1 - STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Con't)

(t) Impairment of  Assets

(u) New and amended standards and interpretations not yet adopted

AASB Title
9 Financial Instruments

15 Revenue from contracts with customers

2010-7
2012-6

2013-9

2014-1
2014-7
2014-8
2014-4

2015-3
2015-1
2015-2

AASB Title
2015-5

2014-10
2014-3

2014-15

AASB 2014-9

This Standard clarifies the principle method of depreciation in AASB 16 Property Plant & Equipment and AASB 
138 Intangible Assets.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Credit Union estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Impairment testing is performed annually for goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives.

Accounting policy changes will arise in timing of revenue recognition, treatment of contract costs and contracts
which contain a financing element.
AASB 15 will also result in enhanced disclosures about revenue, provide guidance for transactions that were
previously addressed comphrensively (for example, service revenue and contract modifications) and improve
guidance for multiiple-element arrangements.
The changes in revenue recognition requirements in AASB 15 may cause chnages to the timing and amount
revenue recorded in the financial statements as wll as additional disclosures.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 15

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The following Australian Accounting Standards that are applicable to future financial reporting periods are not applicable to the
Credit Union.

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial 
Instruments
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the Withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality

Disclosure Initiative - Amendment to AASB 101
Annual Improvements (2012-2014 cycle)

This Standard introduces a five step process for revenue recognition with the core principal of the new Standard
being for entities to recognise revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that
reflect the consideration (that is, payment) to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchnage for those goods
or services.

Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

At each reporting date, the Credit Union reviews the carrying values of its tangible and intangible assets to determine whether
there is any indication that those assets have been impaired. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset,
being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Any
excess of the asset’s carrying value over its recoverable amount is expensed in profit or loss (except for items carried at
revalued amount).

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations 
(AASB 1 and AASB 11)

Equity method in separate financial statements (Amendments to AASB 127)

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and 
Amortisation

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Arising from AASB 9
Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards Arising from AASB 9 - Mandatory Effective Date of AASB 9 
and Transitional Disclosures

This Standard introduces revised requirements for the classification and measurement of financial instruments
as well as recognition and derecognition requirement for financial instruments. Effective from 1 January 2018
and not likely to have a material impact on the credit union's financial report. 

The following Australian Accounting Standards issued or amended are applicable to the credit union but are not yet effective for
the 2015 financial year and have not been adopted in the preparation of the financial statements at report date. The impact of
each Accounting Standard on the credit union's financial reporting in future periods is considered immaterial. 
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2015 2014
$'000 $'000

NOTE 2 - REVENUE
Interest Revenue
Cash and cash equivalent assets 591 70
Deposits with other financial institutions 1,462 1,552
Loans and advances 15,982 16,983
Total Interest Revenue 18,035 18,605

Non-Interest Revenue
Dividends 82 106
Fees and commissions 2,800 2,957
Bad debts recovered 4 2
Profit on sale of property, plant & equipment 1 -             
Income from property -             -             
Derivatives - fair value gain on interest rate swaps -             -             

 - net gain on hedged item -             -             
Other 1
Total non-interest revenue 2,888 3,065
Total Revenue 20,923 21,670

NOTE 3 - EXPENSES
Interest Expenses
Payable to other financial institutions 2 2
Member deposits 7,905 8,835
Borrowings -             -             
Total Interest Expense 7,907 8,837
Non-Interest Expenses
Employee benefit expense
Wages, salaries and other employee benefits 3,869 3,804
Superannuation 357 354
Total employee benefit expense 4,226 4,158
Employee related on-costs expense 363 309
Rental expense on operating leases 524 505
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation of buildings 12 12
Depreciation of plant & equipment 248 205
Amortisation of intangible assets 87 116
Total depreciation and amortisation expense 347 333
Other Expenses
Fees and commissions 1,231 1,066
General administration 1,257 1,105
Occupancy expenses 459 352
Information technology expenses 476 475
Marketing and promotion expenses 393 517
Telephone and communication expenses 179 191
Derivatives - fair value loss on interest rate swaps -             -             

 - net loss on hedged item 77 9
Other expenses 554 26
Total non-interest expenses 10,086 9,046
Total Expenses 17,993 17,883
(ii) Significant Items
The following items are relevant in explaining the financial performance of the credit union:
Expenses - Fraud loss (included under Other Expenses above) Refer Note 38 520 -

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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2015 2014
$'000 $'000

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 4 - INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(a) The income tax expense comprises amounts set aside as follows:

Provision for income tax - current year 936 1,078
Under / (over) provision for income tax in prior years 15 (8)
Increase / (decrease) in the deferred tax liability account -             -             
(Increase) / decrease in the deferred tax asset account (93) 8

858 1,078

(b)

867 1,119

Add tax effect of:
Non-deductible items 12 15
Non-assessable income (fully franked dividends) (35) (45)
Other sundry items (1) (1)
Under / (over) provision for income tax in prior years 15 (8)

Total income tax expense 858 1,078

Applicable weighted average effective tax rate 29.68% 28.92%

(c)

16,965 15,296

2015 2014
NOTE 5 - AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION $ $

Amounts received or due and receivable by the auditor for:

Auditing the financial report 58,000 64,474
Other services - compliance matters including Prudential Audits 38,000 28,840

96,000 93,314

Prima facie tax expense on profit before income tax at 30% (2013: 30%)

The prima facie tax on operating profit is reconciled to the income tax expense as 
follows:

Under the terms of the Credit Union's constitution the franking account credits shown 
above are not able to be paid.

Balance of the franking account at year end adjusted for franking credits arising 
from payment of the provision for income tax, payment of dividends payable or 
receipts of dividends receivable at reporting date
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NOTE 6 - RELATED PARTY AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL

(a) Key Management Personnel (KMP) Compensation

2015 2014
$'000 $'000

Short-term employee benefits 1,060 708
57 52

Other long-term benefits - net increases in LSL provision 5 11

Total compensation 1,122 771

(b) Loans to Related Parties
(i)

- secured loans 1,059 1,069
- overdrafts -                 -                 

(ii)

6 11
Less amounts drawn down and included in (i) -                 -                 
Net balance available 6 11

(iii)

- secured loans 571 744
- overdrafts 4 2

(iv)

-                 5

53 55

During the year the aggregate value of revolving credit facility 
limits granted or increased to Directors and other KMP 
amounted to:

Interest and other revenue earned on loans and revolving credit 
facilities to Directors and KMP amounted to:

The total value of revolving credit facilities available to Directors 
and other KMP, as at balance date amounted to:

The Credit Union's policy for lending to KMP is that all loans are approved on the same terms and conditions which
applied to Members for each class of loan, however, all employees (including KMP) are entitled to an employee
discount from the standard loan rate. There are no loans which are impaired in relation to the loan balances with
KMP.

During the year the aggregate value of loans disbursed to Directors and 
other KMP amounted to:

The aggregate value of loans to KMP as at balance date amounted to:

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Post-employment benefits - superannuation contributions

KMP are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of
the Credit Union, directly or indirectly, including any Director (whether executive or otherwise) of the Credit Union.
Control is the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits for the Credit
Union.

KMP has been taken to comprise the Directors and members of the Executive Management team responsible for the
day to day financial and operational management of the Credit Union. The Executive Management Team for 2015
comprises the Chief Executive Officer, Executive Manager Finance & IT (formally Executive Manager - Corporate
Services), Executive Manager Sales & Distribution and Executive Manager Risk & Compliance.

The total compensation paid to Key Management Personnel during the year, comprising amounts paid or payable or
provided for, was as follows:

In the table directly above for remuneration shown as short-term benefits means (where applicable) salary and
wages, director fees, superannuation, paid annual leave and paid sick leave, profit sharing and bonuses, value of
fringe benefits received, but excludes out of pocket expense reimbursements. All remuneration to non-executive
Directors was approved by the members at the previous Annual General Meeting of the Credit Union. Post
employment benefits include vesting payments upon termination as disclosed in note 21.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

2015 2014
$'000 $'000

NOTE 6 - RELATED PARTY AND KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (Cont'd)

(c) Deposits from Related Parties

Total value of term and savings deposits from KMP 55 318
Interest paid on deposits from KMP 1 6

Other transactions with related parties

NOTE 7 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand 1,083 909
Deposits with ADI's 8,182 10,077

9,265 10,986

NOTE 8 - RECEIVABLES FROM OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Held to Maturity
Deposits with ADI's 61,333 53,503

NOTE 9 - OTHER RECEIVABLES

Accrued income 82 88
Sundry receivables 466 322

548 410

Included in Deposits with ADI's is $450,000 Cash Security Deposit securing the Credit Union's payments under the Interest 
Rate Swap Agreements.  This Security Deposit cannot be redeemed until all interest rate swap contracts are terminated 
(Refer Note 19 for Swap Settlement Periods).

KMP have received interest on deposits with the Credit Union during the financial year. Interest has been paid on
terms and conditions no more favourable than those available on similar transactions to members of the Credit
Union.

Other transactions between related parties include loans and deposits from the 'close family members' of KMP and
the exchange of assets or services from time to time on a commercial, arms length basis. The Credit Union
purchased a Motor Vehicle from a KMP during the year for $53,500 and was based upon an independent valuation.

The Credit Union's policy for lending to related parties is that all loans are approved on the same terms and
conditions which applied to members for each class of loan. This policy has been adhered to for the full financial
year. There are no loans which are impaired in relation to the loan balances with 'close family members' of KMP.

The Credit Union's policy for accepting deposits from related parties is that all deposits are accepted on the same
terms and conditions which applied to members for each class of deposit. This policy has been adhered to for the full
financial year. There are no benefits paid or payable to the 'close family members' of KMP. There are no service
contracts to which KMP or their 'close family members' are an interested party.

The Credit Union's policy for receiving deposits from KMP is that all deposits are accepted on the same terms and
conditions which applied to members for each type of deposit. This policy has been adhered to for the full financial
year.

The Credit Union's related parties consist of KMP and the close family members of KMP and entities that are
controlled or significantly influenced by those KMP, individually or collectively with their close family members.
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2015 2014
$'000 $'000

NOTE 10 - LOANS AND ADVANCES TO MEMBERS

Overdrafts 8,911 9,482
Term loans 292,826 276,247
Gross loans and advances 301,737 285,729
Specific provision for impairment (65) (65)

Net loans and advances 301,672 285,664

Credit Quality - Security held against loans
Secured by mortgage over real estate 292,350 275,906
Secured by bill of sale over motor vehicle 7,151 7,835
Secured by other assets 755 719
Secured by funds lodged with the credit union 564 559
Unsecured 917 710

301,737 285,729

NOTE 11 - IMPAIRMENT OF LOANS AND ADVANCES
(a) Provision for impairment

Specific provision for impairment
Opening balance 65 220
Impairment expense 39 58
Bad debts written off (39) (213)

Closing balance 65 65

(b) Provision for impairment calculation
Prescribed provision required by prudential standards 11 17
Additional specific provision for impairment 54 48
Total specific provision for impairment 65 65

Key assumptions in determining the provision for impairment:

Period of Impairment
Overdrafts (Category 4 
Facilities)

Loans
(Category 3 
Facilities)

Loans
(Category 2 
Facilities)

% of Balance % of Balance % of Balance
14 to 89 days 40 - -
90 days to 181 days 75 40 5
182 days to 272 days 100 60 10
273 days to 364 days 100 80 15
Over 364 days 100 100 20

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

It is not practical to determine the fair value of all collateral as at the reporting date due to the variety of assets and
condition.

In the course of the preparation of the financial statements the Credit Union has determined the likely impairment loss on
loans and overdrafts which have not maintained loan repayments in accordance with the loan contract, or where there is
other evidence of potential impairment such as bankruptcy, industrial restructuring, job losses or economic circumstances.

In identifying the impairment arising from these events the Credit Union is required to estimate the impairment, using the
length of time the loan is in arrears, and the historical losses arising in past years. Given the relatively small number of
impaired loans, the circumstances may vary for each loan over time resulting in higher or lower impairment losses. An
estimate is based on the period of impairment as follows:
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SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
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NOTE 11 - PROVISION ON IMPAIRED LOANS AND ADVANCES (Con't)

No provisions are required for Category One facilities. 

2015 2014
$'000 $'000

(c) Impaired loans and advances
Net impaired loans 10 -                    
Past due but not impaired 606 770
Neither past due or impaired 301,056 284,894

301,672 285,664

(d) Past due loans, not impaired at balance date
These loans are not considered to be impaired as they are well secured by residential property.
Aging Analysis
30 to 90 days -                    -                    
91 to 180 days 350 527
181 to 270 days -                    243
271 to 365 days -                    -                    
365 days or more 256 -                    
Carrying Amount 606 770

Category 2 Facilities
A Category Two facility is defined as a facility that is secured by a registered first mortgage against a residential property,
where the ratio of the outstanding balance, less the amount of mortgage insurance, to the valuation of the security is
greater than 80 per cent but no more than 100 per cent (where the loan is 90 days or more worth of payments past due,
and the valuation is not older than 12 months).

Category 3 Facilities

This category applies to all facilities that do not fall into Categories One, Two, or Category Four. Personal and commercial
loans (both secured and unsecured), and mortgage loans where the ratio of the outstanding balance, less the amount of
mortgage insurance, to the valuation of the security is greater than 100 per cent, are included.

Category 4 Facilities
This category applies to overdrawn savings accounts and overdrawn limits on credit cards, overdrafts and line of credit 
advances.

Category 1 Facilities

Category One facilities are well-secured and include: 
(a) a facility that is secured by a registered first mortgage against a residential property and is insured by an eligible
lenders mortgage insurer for 100 per cent of the outstanding balance; 
(b) a facility that is secured by a registered first mortgage against a residential property, where the ratio of the outstanding
balance, less the amount of mortgage insurance, to the valuation of the security is no more than 80 per cent (where the
exposure is 90 days or more worth of payments past due, and the valuation is not older than 12 months); and 
(c)  a facility that is secured by a registered second mortgage against a residential property where: 
(i) the ratio of the outstanding balances of the facilities secured by both first and second mortgages to the valuation of the
residential property does not exceed 80 per cent, and the first mortgage cannot be extended without it being subordinated
to the second mortgage; 
or 
(ii) where the ratio of the outstanding balances of the facilities secured by both first and second mortgages to the valuation
of the residential property exceeds 80 per cent, and the first mortgage cannot be extended without it being subordinated to
the second mortgage, and the outstanding balance is 100 per cent mortgage insured by an eligible lenders mortgage
insurer.

In addition, an additional specific provision for all loans in arrears greater than 90 days is raised less the realisable value of
any collateral security held against those facilities.
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2015 2014
$'000 $'000

NOTE 11 - PROVISION ON IMPAIRED LOANS AND ADVANCES (Con't)
(e) Loans and advances by impairment and security
(i) Against individually impaired

Secured by mortgage over real estate -                    -                    
Secured by goods mortgage -                    -                    
Unsecured 21 17

(ii) Against past due but not impaired
Secured by mortgage over real estate 606 770
Secured by goods mortgage -                    -                    
Unsecured -                    -                    

(iii) Against neither past due nor impaired
Secured by mortgage over real estate 291,745 275,136
Secured by goods mortgage 7,906 8,554
Secured by funds lodged with the Credit Union 564 559
Unsecured 896 693
Total Loans 301,738 285,729

(f) Restructured Loans
The credit union does not carry any restructured loans at balance date.

(g) Interest and other revenue recognised and foregone

Interest foregone on non-accrual loans 1 4
Interest recognised on non-accrual loans 1 2

2 6
(h) Assets acquired via enforcement of security

NOTE 12 - AVAILABLE FOR SALE INVESTMENTS

Financial Assets, at cost
Shares in unlisted entities - Cuscal 577 577

Credit Union Services Corporation (Aust) Limited (Cuscal)

No material assets were acquired by the credit union under these circumstances. The credit union's policy is to sell
asset via auction or private treaty after measures to assist the members to repay the debts have been exhausted.

The shareholding in Cuscal is measured at cost as its fair value could not be measured reliably. This company was created
to supply services to the member ADI's and originally did not have an independent business focus. These shares were
originally held to enable the Credit Union to receive essential banking services. These shares are not publicly traded and
are not redeemable.

The financial reports of Cuscal record net tangible asset backing of these shares exceeding their cost value. Based on the
net assets of Cuscal, any fair value determination on these shares is likely to be greater than their cost value, but due to
the absence of a ready market and restrictions on the ability to transfer the shares, a market value is not able to be
determined readily.  The Credit Union is not intending to dispose of these shares.
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2015 2014
$'000 $'000

NOTE 13 - PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Land
Freehold land at fair value 294 344

Buildings
Buildings at fair value 466 486
Less accumulated depreciation -              (25)

466 461

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment at cost 2,203 1,849
Less accumulated depreciation (1,490) (1,349)

713 500

Leasehold improvements
Leasehold improvements at cost 606 599
Less accumulated depreciation (540) (509)

66 90

Work in Progress - Capital Additions -              61

Total Property, Plant and Equipment 1,539 1,456

Land Buildings Plant & Leasehold
Work in 

Progress Total
Equipment Improvements  - Capital 

Additions
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $ $'000

Balance at beginning
of the financial year 344 462 500 90 61 1,457
Additions -           -                 369 8 -              377
Revaluation movements (50) 16 -                 -                     -              (34)
Disposals -           -                 -                 -                     -              -            
Depreciation -           (12) (217) (31) -              (260)

-           -                 -                 -                     -              -            
Transfers -           -                 61 -                     (61) -            

294 466 713 67 -              1,540

Land and buildings were last valued at a market value of $780,000 as at 30 June 2015, based upon an
independent valuation conducted by Asset Advisory Property Consultants Pty Ltd, members of The Australian
Property Institute. The carrying value of land and buildings was adjusted for selling costs of $20,000.

Write back of 
depreciation on disposal

Carrying amount at the 
end of the financial year

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

The valuation used the capitalisation of income approach whereby assessed rents are capitalised at an
appropriate market yield and the summation approach whereby the depreciated values of improvements are
summated to the market value of the land.
Capitalisation Approach: Assessed Gross Annual Income $86,471 capitalised at 10.25%.  
With the capitalisation approach, the higher the capitalisation (discount) rate, the lower the fair value.
Summation Approach:  Value of Land $300,000 plus Depreciated Value of Improvements $480,000
With the summation approach, the land is valued using the sale price comparison approach. Sales prices of
comparable land in a similar location are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as land size. The valuation
model is based on a price per square metre. The value of the improvements is based on the depreciated
replacement cost and takes into account age, style, and architectural features.

31

32



2015 2014
$'000 $'000

NOTE 14 - DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deferred tax assets 636 543

Deferred tax assets reconciliation:
Opening Balance 543 566
Transfer from deferred tax liabilities -               -               
Current year charge 93 (7)
Prior year adjustment -               (16)
Closing balance 636 543

Closing balance comprised of the following:
Leave provisions 230 390
Other provisions 198 35
Financial assets 78 15
Written down value of assets (520) (480)
Tax base of assets 650 583

636 543

NOTE 15 - INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(a) Computer Software 1,127 1,051

Less provision for amortisation (934) (846)
193 205

(b) Movements in carrying amounts
Balance at beginning of the financial year 206 184
Additions 74 137
Disposals -               -               
Amortisation Expense (87) (116)
Carrying amount at the end of the year 193 205

NOTE 16 - OTHER ASSETS
Prepayments 131 112

NOTE 17 - DEPOSITS FROM MEMBERS

Member at call deposits (including withdrawable shares) 145,301 128,340
Member term deposits 181,726 177,442

327,027 305,782

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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2015 2014
$'000 $'000

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 18 - PAYABLES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Accrued interest payable 2,078 2,202
Accrued expenses 519 568
Annual leave 344 415
Member suspense transactions 2,185 1,604

5,126 4,789

NOTE 19 - DERIVATIVES

Interest rate swap contracts - cash flow hedges - fair value 261 50

Derivative instruments used by the Credit Union
Interest rate swap contracts - cash flow hedges

Settlement

Notional Principal
1 - 2 years 5,000 -               
2 - 3 years 10,000 5,000

15,000 5,000

Effective Average Interest Rate Payable
1 - 2 years 3.15% 0.00%
2 - 3 years 2.91% 3.15%

At reporting date, the details of the interest rate swap contracts are as follows:

The Credit Union enters into derivative transactions in the normal course of business to hedge exposure to fluctuations in
interest rates in accordance with the Credit Union's interest rate risk management policies.

The Credit Union's variable rate deposit's currently bear an average variable rate of interest of 1.00%. It is the Credit
Union's policy to keep sufficient deposits at fixed rates of interest to ensure Market Risk triggers are kept within Board
approved limits by entering into interest rate swap contracts under which the Credit Union is obliged to receive interest at
variable rates and to pay interest at fixed rates. Fixed interest rates payable on each of the interest rate swap contracts are
detailed below and the variable rates being the 30 day bank bill rate, which at the end of the reporting date was 2.04% pa.

The contracts require settlement of net interest receivable or payable on the 1st day of each month. Settlement dates
coincide with the dates on which interest is payable on the underlying debt. The contracts are settled on a net basis.
Gains or losses from remeasuring the interest rate swap contracts at fair value, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the hedging reserve to the extent that the hedge is effective, and reclassified to profit or loss
when the hedged interest expense is recognised. The ineffective portion is recognised in profit or loss immediately. During
the year ended 30 June 2015, no ineffective portion was reclassified to profit and loss.

The fair value of derivatives is calculated using the present value of the estimated cash flows based on the observable
yield curves at Balance Date.

BBSW +1%  $19,556

Based on calculations as at 30 June 2015, the market value of the swaps for a 1% movement in interest rates would be:

BBSW -1%  ($548,456)
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2015 2014
$'000 $'000

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 20 - TAX LIABILITIES/ASSETS

Deferred tax liability -               -               
Current income tax liability/(asset) (506) 251

(506) 251

Current tax liability reconciliation
Opening balance 251 103
Current year tax charge 862 1,064
Tax payments (1,633) (891)
Prior year adjustments 14 (24)
Closing balance (506) 252

NOTE 21 - PROVISIONS
Long-term Employee benefits

Long service leave & other post employment benefits 424 885

Roll forward of Provisions
Opening balance 885 833
Additional provisions raised during the year 53 62
Amounts Paid (514) (10)

Closing Balance 424 885

NOTE 22 - REDEEMED PREFERENCE SHARE CAPITAL

Opening balance 324 309
Transfers from retained profits for redeemable preference shares 25 15

Closing Balance 349 324

Under the Corporations Act 2001 member shares are classified as redeemable preference shares. The redemption of
these shares is required under the Act to be made from profits. The value of the shares that have been paid to members is
in accordance with the terms and conditions of the share issue and the redemption account represents the amount of
profits appropriated.
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2015 2014
$'000 $'000

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 23 - OTHER RESERVES

Capital reserve 229 229

The capital profits reserve records non-taxable profits on sale of investments.
Asset revaluation surplus 514 537

Opening balance 537 537
Decrease recognised on revaluation of assets (34) -               
Deferred tax benefit 10 -               
Closing Balance 513 537

The asset revaluation reserve records revaluations of non-current assets.
Hedging Reserve (183) (35)

Opening balance (35) -               
Movement in fair value of cash flow hedge (211) (50)
Deferred tax benefit 63 15
Closing Balance (183) (35)

The hedge reserve records revaluations of items designated as hedges.
General reserve for credit losses
Opening balance 1,842 1,862
Add increase / (decrease) transferred from retained earnings 40 (19)

1,882 1,843

Total Other Reserves 2,442 2,574

NOTE 24 - FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS
a) Operating Lease Commitments

Non-cancellable operating leases contracted for but not capitalised
in the financial report, payable:
     - Not later than 1 year 390 446
     - Later than 1 year but not later than 2 years 294 269
     - Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years 302 301

Total Expenditure Commitments 986 1,016

b) Outstanding loan commitments
Loans and credit facilities approved but not funded or drawn down at the 
end of the financial year:

- Loans approved but not funded 31,573 9,137
- Undrawn overdraft, line of credit and VISA 11,241 6,722

42,814 15,859
c) Capital and other expenditure commitments

The Credit Union has not committed to any material capital or other expenditure at reporting date.

Operating leases relate to rentals for the Credit Unions branches. There are no contingent rentals applicable to these
leases and the terms of each lease agreement are between 2 and 5 years.

This reserve records amounts previously set aside as a general provision and is maintained to comply with Prudential
Standards mandated by APRA.
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NOTE 25 - STAND-BY CREDIT FACILITIES

Approved 
Facility 

Amount 
Used

Net 
Available 

2015 $'000 $'000 $'000
Overdraft facility 2,000 -              2,000
IOOF Wholesale Facility 27,000 -              27,000

29,000 -              29,000

2014
Overdraft facility 2,000 -              2,000
Tower Wholesale Trust Facility 27,000 -              27,000

29,000 -              29,000

NOTE 26 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Credit Union Financial Support System
The Credit Union is a participant in the Credit Union Financial Support System (CUFSS). The purpose of the scheme is to
protect the interests of credit union members, increase stability in the industry and to provide emergency liquidity support.
As a particpant in CUFSS, the Credit Union:

(a) May be required to advance funds of up to 3% (excluding permanent loans) of total assets to another credit union
requiring financial support;

(b) May be required to advance permanent loans of up to 0.2% of total assets per financial year to another credit union
requiring financial support;

(c) Agrees, in conjunction with other members, to fund the operating costs of CUFSS.

The value of any calls made and permanent loans advanced during the year was nil (2014 - nil).

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

The Credit Union has a gross credit standby facility with Credit Union Services Corporation (Aust) Limited (Cuscal) of:
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NOTE 27 - MATURITY ANALYSIS OF ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

AS AT 30 JUNE 2015 Less than 12 
months

Over 12 months Total

$'000 $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 9,265 -                              9,265
Receivables due from other financial institutions 60,883 450 61,333
Receivables 548 -                              548
Loans and advances to members 43,954 257,718 301,672
Available for Sale Investments 577 -                              577
Other assets 131 -                              131
Property, plant and equipment -                              1,539 1,539
Deferred tax assets 636 -                              636
Intangible assets -                              193 193
Total Assets 115,994 259,900 375,894

LIABILITIES
Deposits from members 322,172 4,855 327,027
Payables & other liabilities 4,886 240 5,126
Current tax liabilities (506) -                              (506)
Derivatives -                              261 261
Provisions 86 338 424
Total Liabilities 326,638 5,694 332,332

AS AT 30 JUNE 2014 Less than 12 
months

Over 12 months Total

$'000 $'000 $'000
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 10,986 -                              10,986
Receivables due from other financial institutions 53,053 450 53,503
Receivables 411 -                              411
Loans and advances to members 41,283 244,381 285,664
Available for Sale Investments 577 -                              577
Other assets 112 -                              112
Property, plant and equipment -                              1,456 1,456
Deferred tax assets 543 -                              543
Intangible assets -                              205 205
Total Assets 106,965 246,492 353,457

LIABILITIES
Deposits from members 301,345 4,437 305,782
Payables & other liabilities 4,539 250 4,789
Current tax liabilities 251 -                              251
Derivatives -                              50 50
Provisions 476 409 885
Total Liabilities 306,611 5,146 311,757

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015
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NOTE 28 - MATURITY PROFILE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Within 1 
month

1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 
years

No maturity Total 
Contractual 

Amounts
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash 
equivalents

-                 -                 -                 -                 -                 9,265 9,265

Receivables -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 548 548
Receivables due from 
other financial institutions

24,022 35,026 2,000 450 -                 -                 61,498

Loans and advances to 
members

11,322 5,046 19,719 90,224 338,666 -                 464,977

Available for Sale 
Investments

-                 -                 -                 -                 -                 577 577

On Balance Sheet 35,344 40,072 21,719 90,674 338,666 10,390 536,865

Undrawn commitments 
(Note 24b)

42,814 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 42,814

Interest rate swaps -                 -                 -                 15,000 -                 -                 15,000
Total Financial Assets 78,158 40,072 21,719 105,674 338,666 10,390 594,679

Financial Liabilities
Deposits from members 177,509 50,934 95,568 5,095 -                -                 329,106
Payables & other liabilities 5,126 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 5,126

Derivatives -                 261 -                 -                 -                 -                 261
On Balance Sheet 182,635 51,195 95,568 5,095 -                 -                 334,493

Operating leases (Note 
24a)

32 65 292 596 -                 -                 985

Interest rate swaps -                 -                 -                 15,000 -                 -                 15,000
Total Financial Liabilities 182,667 51,260 95,860 20,691 -                 -                 350,478

30 June 2015

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Monetary assets and liabilities have differing maturity profiles depending on the contractual term, and in the case of loans
the repayment amount and frequency. The associated table shows the period in which different monetary assets and
liabilities held will mature and be eligible for renegotiation or withdrawal. In the case of loans, the table shows the period
over which the principal outstanding will be repaid based on the remaining period to the repayment date assuming
contractual repayments are maintained, and is subject to change in the event that current repayment conditions are varied.
Financial assets and liabilities are at the undiscounted values (including future interest expected to be earned or paid).
Accordingly these values will not agree to the Statement of Financial Position.
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SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 28 - MATURITY PROFILE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (Con't)

Within 1 
month

1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 
years

No maturity Total 
Contractual 

Amounts
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Financial Assets
Cash and cash 
equivalents

-                 -                 -                 -                 -                 10,986 10,986

Receivables -                 -                 -                 -                 411 411
Receivables due from 
other financial institutions

17,085 35,967 -                 450 -                 -                 53,502

Loans and advances to 
members

11,913 5,088 19,421 89,457 339,015 -                 464,894

Available for Sale 
Investments

-                 -                 -                 -                 -                 577 577

On Balance Sheet 28,998 41,055 19,421 89,907 339,015 11,974 530,370

Undrawn commitments 
(Note 24b)

15,859 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 15,859

Interest rate swaps 5,000 5,000
Total Financial Assets 44,857 41,055 19,421 94,907 339,015 11,974 551,229

LIABILITIES

Financial Liabilities
Deposits from members 164,004 53,970 85,332 4,687 -                -                 307,993
Payables & other liabilities 4,789 -                 -                 -                 -                 -                 4,789

Derivatives -                 50 -               -               -                -                 50
On Balance Sheet 168,793 54,020 85,332 4,687 -                 -                 312,832

Operating leases (Note 
24a)

37 74 334 571 -                 -                 1,016

Interest rate swaps -                 -                 -                 5,000 -                 -                 5,000
Total Financial Liabilities 168,830 54,094 85,666 10,258 -                 -                 318,848

30 June 2014
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NOTE 29 - INTEREST RATE RISK

Floating Non Total Carrying Weighted
Interest Interest Amount per Average

Rate 1 year Over 1 to More than Sensitive the Financial Interest
or less 5 years 5 years Statements Rate

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 %
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8,182 -                 -                -                1,083 9,265 0.80%
Receivables -             -                  -                  -                  547 547
Receivables due from other 
financial institutions

450 60,883 -                  -                  -                 61,333 2.54%

Loans and advances to 
members

116,886 126,057 58,729 -                  -                 301,672 5.23%

Available for Sale -             -                  -                  -                  577 577
Total Financial Assets 125,518 186,940 58,729 -                  2,207 373,394

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings -
Deposits from members -             327,027 -                -                -               327,027 2.15%
Payables and other liabilities -             -                  -                  -                  5,126 5,126
Derivatives 261 261
Total Financial Liabilities -             327,027 -                  -                  5,387 332,414

Floating Non Total Carrying Weighted
Interest Interest Amount per Average

Rate 1 year Over 1 to More than Sensitive the Financial Interest
or less 5 years 5 years Statements Rate

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 %
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 10,078 -                 -                -                909 10,987 2.07%
Receivables -             -                  -                  -                  410 410
Receivables due from other 
financial institutions

450 53,503 -                  -                  -                 53,953 2.99%

Loans and advances to 
members

135,885 59,926 89,853 -                  -                 285,664 5.79%

Available for Sale 
Investments -             -                  -                  -                  577 577
Total Financial Assets 146,413 113,429 89,853 -                  1,896 351,591

Financial Liabilities
Borrowings -             -                 -
Deposits from members 128,340 173,005 4,437 -                -               305,782 2.91%
Payables and other liabilities -             -                  -                  -                  4,789 4,789
Derivatives -             -                  -                  -                  50 50
Total Financial Liabilities 128,340 173,005 4,437 -                  4,839 310,621

NOTE 30 - SEGMENT REPORTING
The Credit Union operates as a community credit union in Northern New South Wales and Southern Queensland. The 
operations are predominantly the provision of retail financial services to members.

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

30 June 2015
Fixed Interest Rate Maturing In:-

30 June 2014
Fixed Interest Rate Maturing In:-

The Credit Union's exposure to interest rate risk, which is the risk that a financial instrument's value will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market interest rates and the effective weighted average interest rates on those financial assets and
financial liabilities, is as follows:
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2015 2014
$'000 $'000

NOTE 31 - CREDIT RISK

(a) Credit risk exposure

(b) Concentrations of credit risk

Geographic Locations
New South Wales 262,079 248,669
Queensland 37,206 34,207

Customer or Industry
Southern Cross Credit Union Ltd Employees 5,811 5,020
Public Health 11,642 11,448

NOTE 32 - WITHDRAWABLE SHARES

Adult/Business Membership 165 176
Junior Membership 4 4

169 180

NOTE 33 - EVENTS OCCURING AFTER BALANCE DATE

The Credit Union's maximum exposure to credit risk at reporting date in relation to each class of recognised financial asset
is the carrying amount of those assets as indicated on the Statement of Financial Position plus undrawn facilities as
disclosed at Note 25.

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

The Credit Union requires members to purchase shares at $10 for an adult or business membership and $2 for a junior
member. The value of shares held for these classes at balance date was as follows:

The following groups represent concentrations of financial assets in excess of 10% of capital.

There were no events subsequent to balance date that would materially impact on the financial statements.
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SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 34 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Liquid assets and receivables from other financial institutions

Loans and advances

Deposits and amounts due to other financial institutions

Carrying 
Value 

Net Fair
Value 

Carrying 
Value 

Net Fair
Value 

Assets $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Cash and cash equivalents 9,265 9,265 10,986 10,986

61,333 61,333 53,503 53,503
Other receivables 548 548 411 411
Loans and advances 301,737 302,209 285,729 286,331
Derivatives -               -               -               -             
Available for sale investments 577 577 577 577

Total 373,460 373,932 351,206 351,808

Liabilities
-               -               -               -             

Members' Deposits 327,027 327,127 305,782 305,864
Payables and other liabilities 5,126 5,126 4,789 4,789
Derivatives 261 261 50 50

Total 332,414 332,514 310,621 310,703

● Land and buildings
● Derivatives

The carrying value of payables due to other financial institutions approximate their fair value as they are short term in
nature.

The net fair value for fixed rate loans is calculated by utilising discounted cash flow models based on the maturity of the
loans. The discount rates applied were based on the current benchmark rate offered for the average remaining term of the
portfolio as at reporting date.

The credit union measures and recognises the following assets and liabilities at fair value on a recurring basis:

Borrowings

Receivables due from other financial institutions

The carrying value of loans, advances and other receivables is net of specific provisions for impairment. For variable rate
loans, excluding impaired loans, the carrying amount is a reasonable estimate of the net fair value.

The carrying values of cash, liquid assets, and receivables due from other financial institutions approximate their net fair
value as they are short term in nature or are receivable on demand.

The net fair value estimates were determined by the following methodologies and assumptions:

2015 2014

The net fair value of non-interest bearing, call and variable rate deposits, and fixed rate deposits repriced within six months
is the carrying value as at reporting date. Discounted cash flow models based upon deposit type and its related maturity
were used to calculate the net fair value of other term deposits.

42



SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 34 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Con't)
Fair Value Hierarchy

Level 1: Quoted market price (unadjusted) in an active market of an identical asset or liability. 

●
●

●

Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

13 -               760 -               760
- derivatives 19 -               261 -               261

13 -               806 -               806
- derivatives 19 -               50 -               50

Cash and cash equivalents as well as receivables from other financial institutions are short-term liquid assets which
approximate fair value.

The carrying value less impairment provision of receivables and payables is a reasonable approximation of their fair values
due to their short-term nature. The fair value of member fixed interest loans and advances for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows as the current market interest rate on similar loans offered in the
market place. The carrying amount of variable interest member loans and advances approximate their fair value.

The fair value of financial liabilities such as members' deposits for disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the
future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the Credit Union for similar financial
instruments. 

Quoted market prices in active markets for similar assets or liabilities;
Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are considered less than
active: or

2014
Recurring fair value measurements

- land and buildings

Other valuation techniques where all significant inputs are directly or indirectly observable from
market data. 

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant unobservable inputs. This category includes all assets and liabilities where
the valuation technique includes inputs not based on observable data and the unobservable inputs have a significant effect
on the asset's or liability's valuation. This category includes assets and liabilities that are valued based on quoted prices for
similar assets or liabilities where significant unobservable adjustments or assumptions are required to reflect differences
between them.
Fair values for financial instruments or non-financial assets or liabilities traded in active markets are based on quoted
market prices at reporting date. The quoted market price for financial assets is the current bid price. The fair value of
financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined using valuation techniques. To the extent
possible assumptions used are based on observable market prices and rates at the end of the reporting date.

The table below categorises assets and liabilities measured and recognised at fair value at the reporting date by the level of
the fair value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised.

Recurring fair value measurements
- land and buildings

2015

The credit union measures fair values of assets and liabilities carried at fair value in the financial report using the following
hierarchy that reflects the significance of inputs used in making the measurements:

Level 2: Valuation techniques based on observable inputs, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices). This category includes assets or liabilities valued using:

There have been no significant transfers into or out of each level during the year ended 30 June 2015 or the prior year.

Disclosed Fair Values
The Credit Union has a number of assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair values are
disclosed in the notes. 
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SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

NOTE 34 - FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Con't)

Land & Buildings

●

●

Due to the nature of the Credit Union's property it is considered to have level 2 valuation inputs.
Derivatives

current prices in an active market for properties of different nature or recent prices of similar
properties in less active markets, adjusted to reflect those differences

Valuation Techniques Used to Derive Level 2 and 3 Fair Values Recognised in the Financial Statements

The Credit Union's Derivatives (interest rate swaps) are valued independently every year. At the end of each reporting
period the Credit Union uses comparison to similar instruments for which market observable prices exist.

Land and buildings are valued independently every 3 years. At the end of each reporting period the Credit Union
reassesses whether there has been any material movement to the fair value of land and buildings to determine whether the
carrying amount in the financial statements requires adjustment. The Credit Union determines each property's value within
a range of reasonable fair value estimates. 

The best evidence of fair value in current prices is an active market for similar properties. Where such information is not
available the Credit Union considers information from a variety of sources, including:

discounted cash flow projections
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NOTE 35 - ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY
The Credit Union has an economic dependency on the following suppliers of service:
(a) Indue Ltd.

(b) Ultradata Australia Pty. Ltd.

(c) First Data Resources Australia Limited

(d) Cuscal Ltd

NOTE 36 - COMPANY DETAILS

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Southern Cross Credit Union Ltd. is a company limited by shares and incorporated in Australia. The registered office of the
company is Southern Cross Credit Union Ltd. 2-4 Commercial Road, Murwillumbah NSW 2484.

This entity supplies the Credit Union with facilities for the use and settlement for VISA Cards, Cuecards, personal
cheques and facilitates the earning of commission income on certain VISA transactions.
The Credit Union has invested a share of its operating liquidity with this entity. 

Ultradata Australia Pty. Ltd. provides and maintains the application software utilised by the Credit Union.

This company operates the switching computer used to link VISA and Cuecards to the Credit Union's computer
systems.

The Credit Union has established an overdraft facility with this entity and has also invested a share of its operating
liquidity with this entity.
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2015 2014
$'000 $'000

NOTE 37 - CASH FLOW INFORMATION

(a) Reconciliation of cash

Cash and cash equivalents 9,265 10,986

(b) Cash flows presented on a net basis

(a) customer deposits and withdrawals from savings, money market and other deposit accounts;
(b) placement and redemption of term deposits;
(c) short-term borrowings;
(d) provision of member loans and the repayment of such loans.

(c)

Profit after income tax 2,032 2,651

Non-cash flows in profit from continuing operations:
Provision for loan impairment 39 58
Amortisation 87 116
Depreciation 260 217
Net loss/(profit) on sale of property, plant & equipment (1) 2

Changes in assets and liabilities:
Increase / (decrease) in interest payable (124) (541)
Increase / (decrease) in creditors -            -            
Increase / (decrease) in income tax liabilities (757) 149
Decrease / (increase) in deferred tax assets (93) 23
Decrease / (increase) in fees and commissions receivables 6 (2)
Decrease / (increase) in financial asset derivatives -            -            
Increase / (decrease) in financial liability derivatives (148) (35)
Increase / (decrease) in accrued expenses 163 359
Decrease / (increase) in prepayments (19) 19
Increase / (decrease) in employee benefits (531) 48
Net cash provided by operating activities 915 3,064

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Increase / (decrease) in deposits 21,681 19,158
Decrease / (increase) in member loans (16,047) (4,824)
Net cash provided by operating assets and liabilities 5,634 14,334

Net cash provided by all operating activities 6,549 17,398

Cash flows arising from the following activities are presented on a net basis in the cash flow statement:

Reconciliation of cash flow from operations with net profit after income tax

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash includes cash on hand and at call deposits with other financial
institutions. Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the cash flow statement is reconciled to the related
items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
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NOTE 38 - CONTINGENT ASSET
PROFESSIONAL INDEMINITY INSURANCE CLAIM

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

During the 2015 financial year, the Credit Union suffered a significant loss from a member fraud. The Credit Union
believes that this fraud event will be indemnified by QBE Insurance under the Credit Union's Corporate Insurance
programme. Prior to 30 June 2015, the Credit Union lodged a Professional Indemnity insurance claim for $520,000 with
QBE Insurance. QBE Insurance has appointed an external legal firm to conduct an investigation and advise QBE
Insurance whether they are required to indemnify the Credit Union for the claim. At the date of authorisation of the
financial report by Directors, the Credit Union has not been advised of the outcome of the claim and continues to assist
with relevant enquiries from QBE Insurance.

The Credit Union believes the Professional Indemnity claim will be successful and as such, a contingent asset exists of
$520,000.

47

48



To the members of Southern Cross Credit Union Limited

Report on the Financial Report

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

Auditor's Responsibility

In Note 1, the directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 101: Presentation of
Financial Statements, that the financial statements of the Credit Union comply with International Financial
Reporting Standards.

SOUTHERN CROSS CREDIT UNION LIMITED
ABN 82 087 650 682

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Southern Cross Credit Union Limited (“the Credit
Union”), which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015, the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration, for the Credit Union.

The directors of the Credit Union are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report
that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2015

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require that we comply with
relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Credit Union’s preparation of the financial
report that gives a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Credit Union’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial report.

Our audit did not involve an analysis of the prudence of business decisions made by directors or
management.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
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Independence

Opinion

(a)

(i)

(ii)
(b)

Matters relating to the electronic presentation of the audited financial report

Dated at Lismore this 29th day of September 2015.

THOMAS NOBLE & RUSSELL
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

A J Bradfield                                                   (Partner)
Registered Company Auditor

This auditor’s report relates to the financial report of Southern Cross Credit Union Limited for the financial
year ended 30 June 2015 published in the annual report and included on the Credit Union’s website. The
Credit Union’s directors are responsible for the integrity of the Credit Union’s website. We have not been
engaged to report on the integrity of this website. The auditor’s report refers only to the financial report
identified above. It does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been hyperlinked
to/from the financial report. If users of the financial report are concerned with the inherent risks arising from
publication on a website, they are advised to refer to the hard copy of the audited financial report to confirm
the information contained in this website version of the financial report.

In our opinion:

the financial report of Southern Cross Credit Union Limited is in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, including:

giving a true and fair view of the Credit Union’s financial position as at 30 June 2015 and its
performance for the year ended on that date; and
complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and

the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in
Note 1.

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act
2001. The Auditor’s Independence Declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001 has been provided to
the directors of the Credit Union as at the date of this auditor’s report.
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